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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council February 16, 2022

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into a contract amendment with Advance Transit,
Inc. (Vendor 166573), Wilder, Vermont, to increase the contract amount by $360,300.00 from
$6.193.964.00 to $6,554.,264.00 for public transportation services in the Hanover-Lebanon area,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contract was approved by Governor and
Executive Council on June 15, 2021, Item #66. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the Fiscal year 2022:

FY 2022
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $360,300.00
EXPLANATION

The Department has available, prior year carryover, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) COVID relief
funding and this amendment provides Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act
funding as well as American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act funding for the provision of public transportation
services currently under contract. The CARES/ARP Act funds will supplant annually apportioned FTA
funding currently budgeted in the contract, allowing the transit provider to be reimbursed at a 100%
federal rate for eligible operating expenses. The CARES/ARP Act funds will also reduce the amount of
local funds necessary to carry out the project, thus providing some relief to the transit provider and the
local communities it serves. The overall project scope will remain the same through the contract term.

The FTA apportioned COVID relief funding to all states to support operating, capital, and other
expenses generally eligible under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula Program to help mitigate
the effects of the pandemic on transportation services. This Amendment includes Federal COVID relief
funding including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act enacted March 27,
2020. and the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act enacted March 11, 2021. The funds in this amendment
will be used to support rural public transit operating expenses. Amendments are also being submitted for
Governor & Executive Council approval for the other NH rural public transit providers; through these
collective amendments, NH's balance of rural public transit COVID relief funding will be fully
programmed.

If Federal Funds become unavailable. general funds will not be requested to support this program.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING » 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: 603-271-2171 » FAX: 603-271-7025 « TDD ACCESS: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 « INTERNET: WWW.NHDOT.COM



Advance Transit, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation in the
Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Each state’s share of Advance Transit’s funding
is based on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed by the transit system and the two states and
has been in effect since September 30, 1993.

The amended Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on
file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative Services’ Office, and
subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

L.« M

Victoria F. Sheehan
Commissioner

Attachments



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Contract Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into this3 Lﬂpday of E&, 2022, by
and between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483, (hereinafter referred to
as “State”) and Advance Transit, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “the Contractor”), collectively
referred to as (‘the Parties™).

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 15, 2021, Item 66. (hereinafter referred to as “the Contract”);

WHEREAS, on Friday, March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a
National Emergency Concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Outbreak, and on
Friday, March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of New Hampshire issued Executive Order
2020-4, an order declaring a State of Emergency due to COVID-19;

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 Outbreak impacts the services provided under the Contract;

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Contract as provided in this Amendment;
and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed
by both Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Section 1.8, “Price Limitation” of the P-37 form is amended to read ($6,554,264.00)

2. Amended Exhibit C, Budget, C.1 be amended to include an additional $360,300.00
of Federal FTA CARES Act and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act funds for the
net operating expenses (total operating expenses less revenues) for a revised
contract price of $6,554,264.00;

a. Table below

3. This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Contract and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall remain in
full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands to the date first-written
above.

Advance Transit, Inc.

By:_&&&a@.—ﬁpﬂw Date: Z/ 37/ 22
Print Name and Title

By: >
Print Name and Title

Patrick C. Herlihy

Date: 9/ 2% }30')-
Director

Approved by AttRer Ceacral 1 and Trar:

By: _Suuudy C. Move Date: _3/3/ 2022
Print Name and Title J

Approved by Governor and Council

G &C Ttem number: G &C Meeting Date:




ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT

EXHIBIT C

Certificate of Good Standing
Certificate of Corporate Vote
Certificate of Insurance

2 CFR Part 200

Revised Budget

FTA Section 5311




EXHIBIT C

BUDGET (REVISED)
2 Amend.
Orig. Orig. Orig. Amend.
Adwamce Tramalt SFY2022 | SFY2023° |SFY22-23 Total| SFY 2022 SF:::;”
FTA SECTION 5311 - CARES
Administration $868,900.00]  $859,700.00  $1,728,600.00] $0.00  $1,728,600.00
Capital Preventive  Maintenance $601,400.00  $588,800.00]  $1,190,200.00{ $0.00]  $1,190,200.00
Capital ADA $275,800, $272,300.00 $548,100.00 $0.00]  $548,100.
Operating $1453,600.00] $1,183900.00]  $2,637,500.00] $67,546.00]  $2.705,046.00
Total FTA Section 5311CARES Funds ($3,199,700.00($2,904,700.00]  $6,104,400.00) 367,546.00| $6,171,946.00|
Rural transit Assistance Program
RTAP) $10,000.00|  $10,000,00 $20,000.00| $0.00|  $20,000.00
State Operating Funds $34,782.00]  $34,782.00 $69,564.00 $0.00|  $69,564.00]
FTA Section 5311 - ARPA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$292,754.00]  $292,754.00}
Total Contracts Funds $3,244,482.00/52,949,482.00]  $6,193,964.00] $360,300.00| $6,554,264.00
I
Total Two-Year Contract Funds $6,554,264.00

b. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.




ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
ABSTRACT OF CORPORATE MINUTES

The following is a true abstract from minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Ad-
vance Transit, Inc. on April 25, 2019 which meeting was duly called at which a quorum was pre-
sent:

On a motion duly made and seconded, it was voted to approve the following Omnibus Grant
Resolution:

WHEREAS, this Corporation is reliant upon diverse sources of funding for its activities and for the fulfillment of its
purpose of providing a transportation network for the towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont,
including without limitation funding provided by the Federal government, the State of New Hampshire and the State
of Vermont;

WHEREAS, such funding is made available to the Corporation through various grants and awards, including with-
out limitation unnual grants of Federal Transit Administration Funding, all of which grants and awards are contin-
gent upon the execution by the Corporation of certain contracts, acceptances, certifications, assurances, and affirma-
tions by the Corporation and its officers, and the compliance by the Corporation with all laws, regulations, require-
ments and guidance applicable to such grants and awards, including without limitation all federal laws, regulations
and requirements, and applicable federal guidance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that it is in the best interest of the Corporation to enter into all agreements, contracts, acceptances, and
other agreements or documents required or requested by the federal government, and/or the states of New Hamp-
shire and Vermont, and provide all certifications, certificates, acceptances, assurances, affirmations and/or other
documents required or requested by any of the federal government, New Hampshire and/or Vermont, for the Corpo-
ration to be cligible for, and obtain, the funding required or useful for the support of its operations, und (w comply
with all laws, regulations, requirements and guidance applicable to such grants and awards, including without limita-
tion all federal laws, regulations and requirements, and applicable federal guidance, and that furthermore the entry
by the Corporation into all such agreements, contracts, acceptances and other agrecments or documents, and the
provision of all such certifications, certificates, acceptances, assurances, affirmations and other documents required
or requested in connection, and the performance by the Corporation of all obligations set forth in any of the same,
including compliance with applicable law, regulations, requirements and guidance, are hereby directed and approved
by the Board of Directors;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Matt Osborn, as the duly clected President of the Corporation, and any person who
may hereafler succeed Mr. Oshorn as the duly elected President of the Corporation, is hereby authorized and di-
rected to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all agreements, contracts, acceptances, docu-
ments, certifications, assurances, affirmations or other documents approved by the foregoing resolution, and to take
whatever additional actions he may from time to time deem necessary, desirable or convenient to carry out the pur-
poses of the foregoing resolution; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, (hat any actions taken by any officer of the Corporation prior to the date hercof in further-
ance of the foregoing resolutions are hereby ratified, authorized and adopted on behalf of the Corporation.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and ef-
fect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains val-
id for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution.

I further certify that Matt Osborn is the duly elected President of this corporation and still quali-
fied and serving in such capacity.




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 12, 1984, 1 further certify
that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 52688
Cerlificate Number; 0005343826

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8th day of April A.D. 2021,

B Lodborr

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




‘ ADVATRA-01 _ MKAVANAGH
A corb CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE " a0iz021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES .NOT CONSYTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate halder s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemaont. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlhu to the certlficate holdar In lleu of such endorsement(s).

pnowcan °T Molissa Kavanagh _—
Hickok & Boerdman Insurance Group CHOME, 4y, (002) 383-1621 [ J(LBOZ) 656-0541
Burlington, VT 05404 _ 56; MKkavanagy _@\binaurance.com e
____ _INBURER(B) AFFORDING COVERNGE 7T
A ; | wsunma:Acadia Insurance Company 31325
INSURED meuper 8:Unlon Insurance Company _ . |25844
Advanm}‘?ram& Inc. JUNBURERC: S _—
PO Box 1027
Wilder, VT 06088 INBURER D : e } R
|NMNERE: .. . et
INSURER F ¢ = i
COVERAGES ___ CERTIFICATE NUNBER: REVISION NUMBER; R

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFIGATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND GONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY 1IAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'fﬂ____ TYPE OF INSURANGE [Agmnl POLICY NUMBER F A N T
A | X | GOMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY s _432000.000
| cramsmaoe | X | ocoun x| lcPa6163286.17 7112021 | 71112022 gm&%gﬁ"*wm s~ 300,000
ol e —— MEDEXP (A meparsony |3 10,000
I PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
 GE AGGREGAT LIMIT APPLEES PER | cengpaLAGOREQATE |3 000,000
- POLlcvler?&&— [X] o PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGA |3 2:000.000
S NN 5 111 O — ’ I (]
B | auromosie LinpiuTY iy a%umm_nf ST B 5,900,080
X | anvauTo - ICAAB474531-10 TI12021 | 71172022 | popiLY INJURY (Pec porsony |8
e Miﬁbnm.v J iﬁ%gmen mﬂxw\'mnm) (]
RO onLy NOTBRBC i A i 5.
, . 3
A | X | umersiauan | X | occur FAGHOCCURRENGE _ |4 4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAMS-MADE CUAB474632-10 THMI021 | TNI022 | \goncante ' 4 1,000,000
oEo | las‘n:—mom - s -
A TROMERS Soa s X[ SfRvre | 1280 |
ARTNEREXECUTIVE Nﬂl A-5153280-17 TMiz021 7112022 ELEACHACGIDENT |8 1 000 MO
&ﬁw%!ﬂuﬂ)&u? ]- N NIA N ooo
6L DiseAss -eaemeioveel s 1,000,000
doserive under £.0 DISEABE - POLIGY LT | 8 1,000,000

N OF OPERATIONS / LOGATIONS [ VEHICLES 0 101, Aduill ris Sab -
Addltlo Insured status applies for The New Hampshire Depn?tmcm of Tran-porﬁlfon on mo 5onoul u-blllly poilov per terms and conditions of attached
form CG 2010 04/13,

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATIQN,

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN

New Hampshire Department of Transportation ACGORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Bureau of Rail and Transit
PO Box 483
Concord, NH 03302 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
— S > |
ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Pepanimant of Tromporiation

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient Agency: Advance Transit, Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FT'A) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project deseription: (4s required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Ac (FFATA)

Amount: $13,693,396.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NI1-2020-007

Federal Award Date: 5/1/20

Contact information for sub-awarding official:
Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Patrick.C.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:
Subrecipient Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrecipient DUNS number: 118080233

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 5J3P7

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, if no such rale exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414
Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).




i f(/bm A-;r'm

Doparieent af Trawsporiotlon
FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amendment):
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount; $67,546.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendments):
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount: $6,261,510.00

Pags-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance
with Federal statutes,, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and
performance reports.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and
auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the
pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward,

Date: Z-Z %ZZ 2
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official: /&\dj&g‘v\—; p res ek
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Dapartnant qf Tramporiatlan

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

-

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient Agency: Advance Transit, Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Trangit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (ds required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount:; $292,754.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION - ARP

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 1385-2021-7

Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.C.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No

NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:
Subrecipient Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrecipient DUNS number: 118080233

Subrecipient SAM.GOYV registration: SJ3P7

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, if no such raie exists, either a raie negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414
Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).
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Magantmant af Trawspariathon
FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (confract/amendment):
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount: $292,754.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendments);
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount: $292,754.00

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance
with Federal statutes,, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and
performance reports.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and
auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the
pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: ZJ 2{22
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official: M @&4—-




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2022 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: Advance Transit, Inc.
The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here) _x A

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable i)rovisions of the categories it has selected:
Category Certification
01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant
02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans
03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions
04 Lobbying
05 Private Sector Protections
06 Transit Asset Management Plan
07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing
08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
09  Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16  Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18  Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and

Operations
20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND AS, E i

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Neme of the Applicant: ____ Advance Transit, Inc s

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidence, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's bohalf continues to represent it.

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek foderal assistance (o be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulnoss and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission mede in
caonnection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

In signing fhis document, I declare under penalties of petjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me on behalf of the Applicant are true and accurate.

Siguature, /‘% _____ . e = Date: 2'/ 7’/ 2z

Name___Matt Osborn, President Authorized Representative of Applicant
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

1T g

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.

Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council June 7, 2021

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Advance Transit, Inc.
(Vendor 166573), Wilder, Vermont, for an amount not to exceed $6,193,964.00 for public transportation
services in the Hanover-Lebanon area, for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 99% Federal Funds, 1% General Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal
Year 2023, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal
Years if needed and justified.

FY 2022 FY 2023

04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $3,209,700.00 © $2,914,700.00
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
073-509074 Grants Non-Federal $34,782.00 $34,782.00

EXPLANATION

The Department has approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from
Advance Transit, Inc. Lo assist in the provision of public transit service in the Hanover-Lebanon area.
This agreement includes Federal COVID relief funding including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act enacted March 27, 2020 and the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act
cnacted March 11, 2021. The FTA apportioned funding to all states to support operating, capital, and
other expenses generally eligible under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula Program. This
request includes formula and relief funds from each of the aforementioned funding programs as well as
State general funds to assist in meeting the non-federal match requirements.

Advance Transit, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation in the
Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Each state’s share of Advance Transit’s funding
is based on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed by the transit system and the two states and
has been in effect since September 30, 1993. For the FY 2022-2023 biennium, Advance Transit will

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING = 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: 603-271-2171 » FAX: 603-271-7025 » TDD ACCESS: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2864 « INTERNET: WWW.NHDOT.COM



receive $6,104,400.00 of FTA Section 5311 funds, $20,000.00 of FTA Section 5311 (b) funds as well as
$69,564.00 of State gencral funds. Details relative to each funding program and Advance Transit’s
award of these funds are outlined below.

The Department’s proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes funds from the FTA Section
5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (Section 5311) that provides funds for capital, planning,
and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000.

The Department released a public notice on January 14, 2021 announcing the availability of FTA
Section 5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 01, 2021. The Department
received applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funding to each transportation
system. The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

Transit System | ! . Applicant i’ .+ |Average Score

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. 89.30%

Sullivan County Transportation Southwestern Community Services 86.30%
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack

Concord Area Transit Counties, Inc. 82.20%

Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.80%
VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community

City Express Services 78.70%

North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.30%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Specialist reviewed, evaluated, and scored FTA Section 5311
applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials and the Department’s State
Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is provided below for reference:

-

SR . Evaluation Criteria . Wcigﬂ
. The proposed service effectively addresses a demonstrated communny need, and/or the 15%
roposed service is a continuation or expansion of existing services.
2 The gpplicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its (5%
service.
3 [The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%
4 The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area: 10%
. |public, nonprofit, and for-profit.
5 The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and 10%
_~ |otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.
6 The applicgnt dcmgnslrates effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of 10%
transportation services.
The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and cffectiveness, measured in
7 [ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must 15%
' |demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.




The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations, and has a history of
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements.

Note: Every appliéation met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2022-2023 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit

systems.

The Department’s proposed FY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes $200,000.00 of State Funds
per year to assist 10 public transit systems with matching FTA Section 5311 (Rural) or 5307 (Urban)
operating funds. The State Funds will be distributed to transit systems based on three ridership tiers and

will be distributed as follows:

Category | « ., '‘ Agency - | ‘Ridership | SFY2022 | . SFY 2023
Tier 1: Less than 50,000 Rides ? - v
TCCAP- North Country Transit 26,319 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
TCCAP- Carroll County Transit 1,720 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Southwestern Community Services 18,007 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
VNA @ HCS (Keene City Express) 23,014 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
CART {an MTA service) 11,607 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Subtotal $43,480.00 $43,480.00
Tier 2: 50,000 to 200,000 Rides s ‘ '
| BMCAP- Concord Area Transit | 71,177 $17,392.00 $17,392.00
' Subtotal | $17,392.00 $17,392.00
Tier 3: Over 200,000 Rides A :
Advance Transit 630,023 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
Manchester Transit Authority (MTA) 309,983 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
City of Nashua (Nashua Transit) 340,677 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
COAST 330,800 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
Subtotal | $139,128.00 $139,128.00
Total Ridership Distribution , | 1S ,~$200,000.00 | . $200,000.00

Eight agencies operate the 10 public transit systems and will receive state operating funds in the
amounts listed above. The state funds will assist public transit systems in meeting the non-federal match
requirements and will provide financial support for New Hampshire’s public transit services. Non-
federal matching funds of at least 50% are required for transit operations. Advance Transit is included in
the Tier 3 ridership category; and will receive $34,782.00 per year and a total of $69,564.00 for the

biennium.

Advance Transit, Inc. will provide the remaining required non-federal matching funds.

Stimulus funding supported by FTA at 100% in the form of CARES and ARP will be utilized by
drawing against the CARES balance first and then ARP funds. In the event that Federal Funds become
unavailable, additional general funds will not be requested to support this program.

10%

100%




The agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. Copies of the fully
executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative
Services’ Office; and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

Lo ¢ A

Victoria F. Sheehan
Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 11/7/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Exccutive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

’ AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Transportation

1.2 State Agency Address
PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3 Contractor Name
Advance Transit, [nc.

1.4 Contractor Address
120 Billings Farm Road, PO BOX 1027, Wilder, VT 05088-
1027

1.6 Account Number
04-96-96-964010-2916-072-
500575

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number
802-295-1824 x 20!

1.8 Price Limitation
$6,193,964.00

1.7 Completion Date
June 30, 2023

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Michelle Winters, Administrator, Burcau of Rail & Transit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2468

T Conu-aclorSmnaturt

Date: 5/57Z |

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Mot Osborn, Fregldent

1.13 S te Agency Signature

Date: 5//} 4 A/ﬂ

1.14 Name gnd Title of State Agency Signatory
Vatrick c. C. Herllhy
Director
Aeronautics, Rail and Transit

118 lpprov&l‘ﬁy the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.16 _ Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

_By: W : €/3/202\
Z 0 - -&M\.ﬂ
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)
G&C ltem number: G&C Meeting Date:
, =
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT
EXHIBIT A Special Provisions
EXHIBIT B Scope of Services
EXHIBIT C Budget
EXHIBIT D Vehicle List

Certificate of Good Standing
Certificate of Corporate Vote
Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances
FTA Master Agreement

DOL Special Warranty ~ Unified Protective Arrangement
YA | Bt P T
2 CFRPart200

' i+ " “FTA Section 5311

Social Service Documents to Include:
501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors
Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block (.1
("State™), ecngages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.18,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued eppropriation of
funds affected by nny state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, climinates or otherwise maodifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provide in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
par. In no event shall the State be linble for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become evailable, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are idemified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offsel from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments nuthorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation st forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all spplicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited 1o, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations,
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide li personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
el personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) maonths after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporution with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concemming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. .

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a wriften notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days efter giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such nofice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor hes cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
eny Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 1o that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed & waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Decfauit on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any renson other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shell, et .the State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not latcr than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, & report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detnil ali Services performed, and the contract price camed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. [n addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from the
State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be
retumned 1o the State upon demand or upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govened by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosurc of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an sgent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at |east fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, s Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontrncted by the
Contractor without prior written natice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontructs and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted ageinst
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor. or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this parogrnph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing. nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragreph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain &nd
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee lo obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or cxcess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not less than
20% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements spproved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumnish to the Contracting Officer identificd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
lnter than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Horkers’
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
peyment of Workers’ Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thercof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated hercin by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by centified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed 1o the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approvel of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions erising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-17 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit- any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained thercin
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement. 0

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement. which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Amend P-37 Section 2. “EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTORJSBRWCES TO BE
PERFORMED" by adding the following:

The Contractor may change scrvices only with the prior written agreement of the State
and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

Amend P-37 Section 5. “CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT” by

adding the following:

As applicable/based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the
Contractor shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80%
of allowable administrative and capital costs, Operating, administrative and capital costs
are identified in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and document the availability
of local funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Contract Price
Limitation.

In the cvent that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of
total allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the
Completion Date and made available to the State upon demand.

The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the
State on a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request.
Such requests for payment shall be. properly completed and signed. Requests for
payments must be for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for
advance payment will be accepted by the State. ‘

Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine
the allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand
production of (and the Contractor shall produce) and inspect any documents and records
described in Section 5.

Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount
due and owing to the Contractor and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions
of this Agreement. Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract
amount in any given quarter.

Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by
this Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month
or portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of
the State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained
and withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.

Amend P-37 Section 6. “COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY" by adding the following:

\
d



6.4

6.5

6.6

Ad.

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants
for employment. notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard -to race,
color, age. creed, sex or national origin.

The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and
any subcontracts under this agreement. -

Amend P-37 Section 9. “DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/PRESERVATION" by
adding the following: :

The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of

this agreement:

a) Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such
data in whole or in par, or in any manner or form. nor may the Contractor authorize
others to do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA
may have cither rcleased or approved the relcase of such data to the public.

b) As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royally-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise usc, and to authorize others
1o use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant. cooperative
agreement, sub-grant, or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has
been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a rccipicnt, sub-recipient, or third
party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

Itis FTA's intent lo increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above,
FTA may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, contraclor or subcontractor its
license in the copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data
first produced under this Agreement.

The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
ofTicers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation
of the proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreemenl.

Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license 1o the United States under any

~ patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise

granted to the United States under any patent.

Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Contractor
by the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement,;
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of
delivery of such work.



9.9

A.S.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

A.6.

121

A7,

25.

In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

Amend P-37 Section 10. “TERMINATION" by adding the following:

The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) prior to final payment.

Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this
Agreement, the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve
the Contractor from any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State
as a result of the Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder, including refund of any
federal funds required by FTA.,

Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the
partics hereto.

Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the
Contractor hereunder, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon
thirty (30) days written notice.

Amend P-37 Section 12. “ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS” by
adding the following:

The Contractor shall causc the provisions of this contract to be inserted in all subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Contractor shall
take such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Contractor shall
ensure that any subcontractor has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals required for
the performance of contract services.

Amend P-37 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Scction 25:

DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services
described in Exhibit A and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to
the Statc detailing the scope of the public (ransportation program of the Contract as



modified and approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,
purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
transportation service.

SECTION 5311: Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshir'c, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Burecau of Rail and Transit.

A.8. Amend P-37 by adding “ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

.1. Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget calegory. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the
Contractor. The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will
indicate the funds remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of
cach month. Entries shall be made on a running basis and carried over to the following
month; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively. Contractor shall also prepare
and submit Lo the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such information is not
provided with invoices.

2. Accounts Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and
maintain receipt vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall credit all revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall establish and maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt
number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt
voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify each
component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each deposit should
be attached to the receipt voucher.

3. Payables. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures
of funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a
form approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will
be drawn, the date of expenditure. a voucher number running in sequence, and any
appropriate comments supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g.. invoices and payroll
vouchers). All invoices received by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and
allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the Contract Manager or
designee. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or subcontractor shall make entries
to the appropriate ledger shects documenting payment. (Each subcontractor shall identify
a Contract Manager).

4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
(wo registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
sclf-designated-abbreviations are to be used.



5. Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register

is also considered a book of original entry, and is posted to the ledger immediately.

6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its

employees to: 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent
on such work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the
cognizant Federal agency. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply
employee’s rates of pay to the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed
and signed time reports, and cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Contractor shall maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and
shall post this information to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contract
Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis. *

.

7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Contractor shall submit a description of Contract

activities, in a format as required by the State. Should the Contractor show a profit for any
month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement
requests. The Contractor shall agree to provide information in addition to the monthly
narrative at such times and in such manner as the State may require, and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or
termination report if operations cease.

8. Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and

accounts described hercin for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution
shall rest with the State. '

9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period

of three (3) years afier the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters
relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor's normal
business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Contractor shall make
available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered
by this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and
reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls,
records of personnel, Data (as defined in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relating
to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Contractor” includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with; controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of P-37.

Independent Audit. The Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the
project upon demand. Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the
Contract Budget for that specific purpose.

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the

Contractor, for whatever rcasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums



A9.

27.

within thirty (30) days of the audit date.

The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity
reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information
or reports required by the Stale to complete the FTA’s National Transit Database (NTD)

reporting.

Amend P-37 by adding “PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:

PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with
funds provided through this or other Agreements between the State and the Contractor:

a. All_[—)rocurcmcnts shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular
4220.1F and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts
661 and 663.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State, unless the Contractor has received prior
approval from the State to procure vehicles.

c. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be
purchased by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State.

d. Title to all project cquipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided,
however, that in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the
Contractor shall give the State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of
purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other acts necessary or
useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the
purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall give
the State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take
all steps necessary to protect the State’s security interest, including taking steps to
identify the State as a lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

¢. In the cvent that this agreement is tcrminated, all project equipment and property
becomes the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to
such equipment shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment
will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040.1G, and the Statc
Management Plan.

A.10. Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION” as section 28:

28.

EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Contractor shall maintain a current inventory
listing of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Contract shall
submit to the State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall
be supplied to the State by each year, generally by June 30™.

A.11. Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE?” as section 29:



29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment uscd in the service described in Exhibit D. Contractor
shall maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and
mechanical soundness. The contractor shall certify that a proper maintenance plan
that meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer’s preventive
maintenance guidclines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved
by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical improvement
activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contractor and at a location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in
this location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any
physical improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA
and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the
purpose of confirming proper maintcnance and repair.

A.12. Amend P-37 by adding “REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS” as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shall maintain a complete and
up to date record of all motor vehicle repairs, and shall make such records available to
the Statec and FTA upon demand.

A.13. Amend P-37 by adding "VFHICLE STORAGE? as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part
under this Agreement, or maintaincd under this Agreement, the Contractor shall park or
garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each
vehicle. The Contractor shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of
weather or any other circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location
of the garaging site and any relocation.

A.14. Amend P-37 by adding “TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW?" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The Stale may require participation in training
courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period
and may require participation in such training programs as il deems necessary by drivers
and other employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include
defensive driving, passenger assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher
training every three (3) years. The Contractor agrees that the State shall have the right to
review the performance of all drivers who are employed in connection with this
Agrecement, and to disallow the usc of any driver whose performance as a driver is
determined Lo be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.15. Amcnd P-37 by adding “SAFETY REQUIREMENTS?” as scction 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. All project equipment shall be inspected and certified
by the Department of Safety, and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carricr Safcty Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety undcr
RSA 266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.
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A.18.
36.

A.19.

37.

A.20.

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt written notification of any
accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Contractor shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contractor shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering
the previous ycar (January | through December 31), summarizing the results of its
alcohol misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall
be in compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

The Contractor shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA’s Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposcs as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

Amend P-37 by adding “SERVICE LIMITATIONS” as section 34:

SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Contractor shall not engage in the provision of
transportation services other than those described in Exhibit A, or outside the service area
described in Exhibit A, without the written consent of the State and without obtaining the
appropriafc operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus
operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

Amend P-37 by adding “CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS” as section 35:

CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the

Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are

required by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may

be necessary for the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that

all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and

shall be properly licensed and authorized to perform such Services under all applicable
laws.

Amend P-37 by adding “LABOR PROVISIONS” as scction 36:

LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of
the Unified Protective Arrangement, Scction 533(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended,
incorporated herein for the protection of the employees of any employer providing
transportation services assisted by this Agreement, and the employees of any other
surface transportation providers in the transportation service area identified in Exhibit A.

Amend P-37 by adding “PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this Contract,
which invention, improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the
United States or any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State
and providc a detailed report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the
State with respect to such invention. improvement, or discovery will be determined in
accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof.

Amend P-37 by adding “BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION™ as section 38:



38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Contractor warrants that it has not
employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working
solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely
for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.
For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this
Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

Rev 4/26/21



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
" EXHIBITB
SCOPE OF SERVICES

. The Contractor, Advance Transit Inc., (hereinafter the “Contractor”) shall provide the
following publictransit service(s):

a. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in the

Greater Hanover-Lebanon area as detailed in the “Project Description” of the
Contractor’s application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit (hereinafter “NHDOT™) for Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Section 5311 funding. The Contractor’s application is hercby
incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement.

. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the public transit services provided by
Contractor pursuant to this agreement:

a.

The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation or the Commissioner’s
designee (hereinafter the “Commissioner”™) may require the Contractor to provide
additional transportation services or to reduce transportation services provided under
this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in
writing by the Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the
alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.

The Contractor may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Contractor’s grant application to the NHDOT, to add, reduce, or adjust transportation
services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services,
including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall be requested
in writing by the Contractor to the Commissioner for approval at least 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject to a public comment period shall be requested at least 60
days in advance. Upon approval of the Commissioner, the Contractor shall implement
any alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.

The Contractor shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
Commissioner, except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the
Contractor shall notify the Commissioner no later than the next working day
following the day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for &
maximum of five days; thereafter, the written approval of the Commissioner shall be
required to continue such emergency changes.

All project vehicles, including those Federally-funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as
any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with all
applicable Federal and State laws as well as NHDOT requirements.

The Contractor shall administer training, technical assistance, research, support
services and projects administered on behalf of and at the request of the



Commissioner in support of the goals and objectives of the FTA Rural Transit
Asgistance Program (RTAP).

3. The following terms and conditions apply to State Operating funds:

a. State operating matching funds shall be used to provide a portion of the non-Federal
Funds required to match Federal Transit Administration (FTA) operating funds for
public transportation services provided by the Contractor and as further detailed on
the Contractor’s website,



1.

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the FTA Section
5311 portion of the eligible project costs as well as State Operating funds. Federal and State

EXHIBIT C
BUDGET

funds are granted as follows:
SFY 2022 SFY 2023 -
FTA Section 5311
Administration $868,900.00 $859,700.00
Capital Preventive Maintenance $601,400.00 $588.800.00
Capital ADA $275,800.00 $272,300.00
Operating $1,453,600.00 | $1,183,900.00
Total FTA Section 5311 Funds $3,199,700.00 | $2,904,700.00
Rural Transit Assistance
Program (RTAP) $10,000.00 §10,000.00
State Operating Funds - $34,782.00 $34,782.00
Tatal Contracts Funds §3,244,482.00 | $2,949,482.00
Total Two-Year Contract Funds $6,193,964.00

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor’s first request for FTA
Section 5311 reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the Commissioner a budget
incorporating all funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract.
Budget revisions may be made with written approval of the Commissioner. Budget revisions
may only request the transfer of funds within a category or between categories with the same
matching ratio.

Reimbursement of state operating funds shall be requested via monthly invoices until
operating funds are fully expended.

The Contractor’s submitted invoices shall indicate the month(s) for which the state operating
matching funds are being applied, the amount of FTA funds the state operating matching
funds are leveraging, and the FTA grant program from which the Contractor will draw down-
the FTA funds.

The Contractor may seek reimbursement only for eligible expenses listed in the budget and
detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with the exception of funds specifically reserved, if
any, and identificd in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.

The Contractor shall submit appropriate procurement documentation to the State for review
and approval prior to any capital procurement. Upon approval, the Contractor may proceed
with the procurement and submit an invoice to the NHDOT for reimbursement of project



expenses in compliance with Federal gnidance, including FTA Third Party Procurement
guidelines and FTA Circular 4220.1F or most recent.

. At the sole discretion of the Commissioner, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Contract Price to a subsequent
contract, if any, between the State and the Contractor.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBIT D
VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles: 23
2019 LOW FLOOR DIESEL 15GGE2714K3093514
2011 Gillig Hybrid LLC Bus 15GGB3016B1176561
2011 Gillig Hybrid LLC Bus 15GGB3014B1176560
2012 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus 15GGB3012C1180088
2012 Patriot Freightliner SD Van Diesel WDPPF4CC0C5722322
2014 Bldorado National Aerolite 1GB3G2BL6E1136067
2014 Eldorado Nationa! Aerotech 240 1GB6G6BLTE1128919
2016 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus 15GGB2718G1187035
2016 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus 15GGB2716G1187034
2016 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus 150GB271XG1187036
2017 Freightliner FXCC76 WDPPF4CC6H9724205
2018 35 ft. Gillig Diesel Bus 15GGB2710J3188756
2018 35' Gillig Diesel Bus 15GGB2719)3188755
2018 35' Gillig Diesel Bus 15GGB2717J3188754
2018 35' Gillig Diesel Bus 15GGB2715J3188753
2018 Ford Eldorado Aero Elite Bus IFDAFSGTSHEE36704
2018 Ford Eldorado Elite Bus IFDAFSGT6HEE36703 | 1FDAFSGT6HEE36703
2018 Ford Escape 4 cyl. 1FMCU9HD2JUC87893
2018 Ford F350 Diesel Pickup 1FDRF3BTSJEB73897
2018 Gillig 35' Diesel Bus 15GGB271313188752
2019 Gillig 29' LOW FLOOR 15GGE2712K3093513
2019 Gillig 29 LOW FLOOR 15GGE2710K3093512
2019 Gillig Low floor diesel 15GGE2716K3093515




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stats of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Janvary 12, 1984. 1 further cestify
that all fees end documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been reoeived and is in good standing as far as this
office is concerned.

Business [D: 52688
Certificate Number: 0005343826

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOFT,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be nffixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8th day of April A.D. 2021.

oKk

William M. Gardner
Secrotary of State




ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

ABSTRACT OF CORPORATE MINUTES

The following is a true abstract from minutes of thc meeting of the Board of Directors of Ad-
vance Transit, Inc. on April 25, 2019 which meeting was duly called at which a quorum was pre-
sent:

On a motion duly made and seconded, it was voted to approve the following Omnibus Grant
Resolution:

WHEREAS, this Corporation is reliant upon diverse sources of funding for its activities and for the fulfillment of its
purpose of providing a transportation network for the towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont,
including without limitation funding provided by the Federal govemment, the State of New Hampshire and the State
of Vermont;

WHEREAS, such funding is made available to the Corporation through various grants and awards, including with-
out limitation annual grants of Federal Transit Administration Funding, all of which grants and awards are contin-
gent upon the execution by the Corporation of certain contracts, acceptances, certifications, assurances, and affirma-
tions by the Corporation and its officers, and the compliance by the Corporation with all laws, regulations, require-
ments and guidance applicable to such grants and awards, including without limitation all federal laws, regulations
and requirements, and applicable federal guidance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that it is in the best interest of the Corporation to enter into all agreements, contracts, acceptances, and
other agreements or documents required or requested by the federal government, and/or the states of New Hamp-
shire and Vermont, and provide all certifications, certificates, acceptances, assurances, affirmations and/or other
documents required or requested by eny of the federal government, New Hampshire and/or Vermont, for the Corpo-
ration to be eligible for, and obtain, the funding required or useful for the support of its operations, and to comply
with all laws, regulations, requirements and guidance applicable to such grants and awards, including without limita-
tion all federal laws, regulations and requirements, and applicable federal guidance, and that furthermore the entry
by the Corporation into all such agreements, contracts, acceptances and other agreements or documents, and the
provision of all such certifications, certificates, acceptances, assurences, affirmations and other documents required
or requested in connection, and the performance by the Corporation of all obligations set forth in any of the same,
including compliance with applicable law, regulations, requirements and guidance, are hereby directed and approved
by the Board of Directors;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Matt Osborn, as the duly elected President of the Corporation, and any person who
may hereafier succeed Mr. Osbom as the duly elected President of the Corporation, is hereby authorized and di-
rected to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all agreements, contracts, acceptances, docu-
ments, certifications, assurances, affirmations or other documents approved by the foregoing resolution, and to take
whatever additional actions he may from time to time deem necessary, desirable or convenient to carry out the pur-
poses of the foregoing resolution; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any actions taken by eny officer of the Corporation prior to the date hereof in further-
ance of the foregoing resolutions are hereby ratificd, authorized and adopted on behalf of the Corporation.

~

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and cf-
fect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains val-
id for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution.

1 further certify that Matt Osborn is the duly elected President of this corporation and still quali-
fied and serving in such capacity.



Asgrétant Secretary

"No corporate seal."

STATE OF VERMONT |
COUNTY OF WINDSOR

On/d % 299 before the undersigned officer personally appeared the person identified in the

foregoing certificate, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the Assistant Secretary of the
corporation identified in the foregoing certificate, and acknowledge that he executed the forego-

ing certificate.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

N Public



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ADVATRA-01 ) HYARLETON
DATE [MAVODYYYY)
6/18/2020

| THIS CERTIFICATE S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS |
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

HEFRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

" IMPORTANT;

If the cadtificate holder ts an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(las) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or| be endorsed. -
If BSUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policlas may require sn endorsement. A ‘statement on
this mncm dm not confer ngm to the corflficate holder in lleu of such endorssment{s).

PRODUCER

Hickok & Boardman, inc,
346 Shelbume Rd
Burilngton, VT 05401
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COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

INDICATED.
CERTIFICATE MAY -BE-ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFF

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY, THA‘I‘ THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN IBSUED TO THE INBURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
NOTWITHETANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR counlmN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
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THIS CERTIFICATE |3 [SBUED A8 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
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BELOW., THIB CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOEB NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACY BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER.
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POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 201004 13
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
~ CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR
g ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following:

COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

E SCHEDULE

Name 0fAdﬁItlona1 tinsured Person{s)
. Or Organization{s)

. Location(s) Of Covered Operations
ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

Iformation required to complate this Sohedule, If ol shown above, will ba shawn In the Declaretions.

A. Sectlon Il - Who ls An Insured Is amended to
include as an additional Insured the person(3
or ,o'ren;amiauonj(g) shown In thé.Schedule, bu
only With respect to llabliity for "bodity Injury”,
"oroperty damage" or "personal and adver-
tising Infury” caused, In whole or in part, by:

1. Your'acts or omissions; or

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional Insurads, the following additional
exclusions apply: -

This insurance does not apply to "bodlly injury"

or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, Induding materlals, parts or
equipment fumished in connection with

CG 20100413

3. ,Tb&ggts or omissions of those acting on such work, on the project (other than
your behalf;

in the performance of your or;%qlqg operations
for the additional Insured(e) at the locaflon(s)
designated above.

However.

1. The.insurance afforded to such additional
Insured ::2! applles to the extent permitted
bylaw;

2. If coverage provided to the additlonal in-
sured 13 required by a contract or agree-
ment, the Insurance afforded to such addl-
tional insured Will not be broader than that
which you are required by the contract or
]agreement o provide for such additional
nsured.

® insurance Services Offlce. Inc.. 2012

service, mainteanance or repalrs) to be
parformed b{ or on behalf of the additional
insured(s) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

2. That portion of "your work" out of which
the Infury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza-
tion other than another contractor or sub-
contractor engg?ed in perfmnlng‘ opera-
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

Page 1 0of 2
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C. With respect to. the Insurance afforded to these

ditihal Insureds, the -following is added to
8 n fl,l ~ Limits Of Insurance:
If coverege provided to the additional Insyred I8
Nqu'.r'éﬂ'g?x a:contract or agreement, the most
wé will pay on behalf of the -addlitional Insured
Is the afnount of Insurance: ‘
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 20f?2’

© Insurance Services Offica, Inc., 2012

2. Avallable under the eapplicable Limits of
Ingurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not Increase the appli-

" cable Limits of Insurance shown in the Dedlara-

tions.

CG 201004 13



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2021 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)
Advance Transit, Inc.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of categories 01-21. X_
Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions ofthe categories it has selected:
Category Certification
0l. Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant
02  Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans
@  Tax Liability and Felony Convictions
04 Lobbying
05  Private Sector Protections
06  Transit Asset Management Plan
07  Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing
08  Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
09  Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10  Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 202i

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs '

B State of Good Repair Grants

14  Infrastructure Finance Programs

15  Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19  Construction Hiring Preferences

20  Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and

Operations
21  Tribal Transit Programs

(Required of el Applicants for fedoral assistance © be awarded by FTA in FY 2021)

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

BY SIONING BELOW, on behalfofthe Applicont, 1 declare that it has duly authorized me to mske these
Certifications and Assursnoes and bind its commplinnce. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulstioas,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assursnces as
indlcated on the foregoing page applicable to each epplication its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Tronsit Administration (FTA) in foderal fiscal yoar 2021, Imespootive o fwhether tho [ndividual that acted an his or
her Applicant’s behaif continucs o represent it.

FTA intends that the Certifications and Assurances the Applicant sclects on the other side of'this*document
should apply to each Awnrd for which it now secka, or may later seck federal assistance to be awarded during
federal fiscal year 2021,

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and acaracy ofthe Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and amy other submission made o FTA, end ecknowiedges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 US.C. § 3801 o/seq., ond implementing U.S, DOT regulations,
"Program Proud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR part 31, apply 10 eny certification, assurance or submission made to
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FFY 2021 MASTER AGREEMENT
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Trensit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Master Agreement
roquires recipicnts end subrecipients to camply with the requirements containied in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds, The langnage coatained in the Master

st be incarporated into the edministration of the agreement my agency has
with ths New Hampshire Departmant of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledgo receipt of the FFY 2021 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this egreement is referred to in my sgenoy’s agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Mester Agreement romains in force for the term of the
agreement.

__Advence Trengit Ine. 1/22/2/
Nams of Agency "~ Dite

Mot b oFn St

Name of Authorizod Official Signature
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Special Warranty Arrangement

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility
Projects
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF
TITLE 490F THE U.S. CODE, CHAPTER 53
January 3, 2011

The following languags shall be made part of the contract of assistance by referencein (‘he Federal Translt Administration’s Master
Agreement as signed by the grantee:

Tha terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the transportation-related employees In the
transportation service area of the Project. As 8 precondition of tha retease of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any
Redipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Reciplent to these obligations by incorporating this smangement into the
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Reciplents), by referance. If a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the
Warranty and fails ta bind a Recipient as a precondition to the relsase of funds, the Grantee will be a guarantor of the requlred
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as If it were the Recipient of funds unless and until the Grantee is able to secure
the retroactive agreement of the Reclplent to be bound by the tarms of the Warranty,

These protective arrangements are intended for the benefit of transit employees in the service area of the project, who are
considerad as third-party benefidaries to the employee protective amangements Incorporated by referenced In the grant contract
between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that
contract. Transit employees aro slso third party beneficlaries to the protective arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts
of assistance between the Grantee and any Reciplent. Employecs, or their representative, may assert clalms with respect to the
protective amangements under this provision. This clause creates no hdepmdent cause of action agalnst the United States
Government,

The term "service area” as used herein, Includes the geagraphic area over which the Project Is operated and the area whose
poputation Is served by the Project, Including adjacent areas affected by the Project. The term “Union,” a3 used hereln, shall refer to
ony labor arganization representing employees providing public transpartation services [n the service ares of a Project assisted
under the grant. The term "employes,” as used herein, shall include individuals who may or may not be represented by a Unlon,
The term "Reciplent,” as used hereln, shall refar to any employer(s) recaiving transportation assistance under the grant. The term
*Grantee,” as used hereln, shall rafer.to the applicant for assistance; 2 Grantee which receives sssistance Is also a Reciplant,

Whera the Department of Labor (the Department) deems it necessary to modily the requirements of this Special Wamanty
Amangement so that a particular Grantee or Reclplent can continua to satisfy the requirements of the statute, the Department will
Issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the atternative provisions to be Included in tha contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference, These terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with
these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistanca until withdrawn in writing by the Department.

{1} The Project sha!l be carred out In such 2 manner and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversety affect employees of
the Raciplent and of any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Project. it shall be 2n
obligation of the Rociplent to assure that any and all transportation sorvices assisted by tha Project ara contracted for and operated
in such & manner that they do not Impair the rights and interests of affected employees. The term *Project,” as used hereln, shall
not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall Include any changes, whether
organizational, operational, technological, or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project” shall, when used In this arangement, include events related to the Project occurring In anticipation of, during, and
subssquent to tha Project and any program of efficiendes or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about salety by causes other than the Project
{including any economles or efficiencles unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this srrangement.

An employee covered by this srmrangement, wha Is not dismissed, displaced or otharwise worsened In his/her position with regard
to employment as a result of the Project, but who Is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
partial termination of the Profect or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dlsmissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this srrangement.



(2) Where employees of a Reciplent are represented for collective bargaining purposes, all Project services provided by that
Redlpient shall be provided under and In accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicabla to such employees which
is then In sffect. This Arangoment does not create any cotlective bargaining relationship where one does not already exist or
between any Redplent and the employees of another employer. Where the Reciplent has no r.ollncﬂve?arplnlns relationship with
the Unions representing employees in the service ares, the Reciplent will not take any action which impairs or interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and beneflts (Including pension rights and benefits) of employees covered by this armangement (induding
employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwiss, or under any revislon or renewal
thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however, that such rights, privileges and benefits which are not foreclosed
from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Reciplent
and the Union involved to substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwlse provided, nothing in this arrangement
shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Reciplent may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it
deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

{4) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by th!s arrangement, including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintaln unfon security and checkoff armangements, a3 provided by applicable laws, policies and/or exdsting collective bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be Interpreted 5o as to require the
Recipient to retatn any such rights which exist by virtue of a collective bargaining agreement alter such agreement Is no longer In
effect.

The Reciplent agrees that It will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continustion of collective
bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Unlon or arrange for such agreements to be entered Into, relativa to all
subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. i, at any time, applicabie law or contracts permit or grant to
employees covered by this ammangement the right to utillze any sconomic measures, nothing In this amangement shall be deemed
to foreciose the exercise of such right.

(5)(a) The Reciplent shall provide to all sffected employees sixty (60) days' notice of intended actions whith may result in
displacements or dismissals or reamangements of the working foroes as a result of the Project. in the case of employees
represanted by a Unlon, such notice shall be provided by certiiad mafl through thelr representatives. The notice shall contaln a full
and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the number of employees affected by the Intended changes,
and the number and classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Reciplent, Including those in the
employment of any entity bound by this amangement pursuant to paragraph {21), available tn be filled by such affected employees.

(5)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices Involva employees representad by a Union for
collective bargalning purposes. At the request of either the Raciplent or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the
purposes of reaching agreement with nespect to the application of the terms and conditions of this amangement shall commence
immediatety. These negotiations shall include determining the selection of forces from among the mass transportation employees
who may be affected as 8 rasult of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they ara
qualified or can be tralned. If no agreement Is reached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any party
to the disputa may submit the matter to dispute sattiement procedures In accordance with peragraph (15) of this smangement.
Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree in writing, no changa In operations, services, facilities or equipment within the
purview of this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either: 1) an agreement with respect to the application of the terms and
conditions of this srrangament to the Intended changefs) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendersd pursuant
ta this subparagraph (b); or 3) en arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15) of this arrangement determines that the Intanded
change(s) may be instituted prior to the finalization of Implementing amangements,

(S)(c) tn the event of a disputs as to whather an Intended changa within the purview of thls paragraph {5) may be Instituted at the
end of the 60-day natice périod and before an implementing agreement is reached or a final arbitration decision Is rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b), any invotved party may immediately submit that Issue to arbitration under psragraph (15) of this
armangement. In any such arbltration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utllized by the Surface Transportation
Board (and Its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commlssion) to address the “preconsummation® issue In coses
Involving employee protectlons pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or Its pradecessor, Section 5(2)(f) of the Interstate Commerce
Act, as amended). if the Rediplent demonstrates, as 3 threshold matter In any such arbitration, that the Intended action s a
trackaga rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, scquisition, consolidation, or other stmilar transaction,
the burden shall then shift to the Involved labor organtzation(s) to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above,
the Intended action should nat be permitted to be Instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated Impiementing
agreement. lf the Redplent falls to demonstrate that the Intended action is o trackage rights, lease proceeding, or similar
transaction, it shall be the burden of the Redplent to prova that under the standards and crteda reforenced above, the intended
action should be permilted to be instituted prior to the efiective date of a negotiated or arbitrated Implementing agreement. For
purposas of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties ara to respond to the list of potentizl arbitrators



b

submitted by the American Arbitration Assoclation Service shall be five (5} days, the natice of hearing may be given anally or by
facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to
by the parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with five (5) additional days for malling if
postheéring briefs are requested by either party. The intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

{5Xd) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) isInstituted before an implementing agreement [s reached or a
fina! arhitration declsion Is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b}, all employees affected shall be kept finandally whole, as |f the
noticed and Implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected untll the effective date of an implementing
agreement or final arbltration deision. This protection shall be In addition to the protective period defined In paragraph (14) of this
amangement, which period shall begln on the effective date of the Implementing agreement or final arbitration decision rendered

pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of 2 noticed and implemented action prior to
the consummation of an Implementing agreement or final arbitration dediston shall accumutate no benefits under this
arvangement as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummotion of an implementing agroement or final arbltration
dedsion pursuant to subparagraph (b).

{6){a) Whenever an emplayee, ratained in service, recalled to service, or employed by the Reciplent pursuant to paragraphis (5), (7)
(e), or (18) hereof is placed In o worse position with respect to compensation as a result of the Project, the employee shall be
considerad a "displaced employee”, and shall be paid a monthly “displacement allowance” to be determined In accordance with
this paragreph. Said displacement allowanca shall be pald each displaced employee during the protective perfod salong as the
employwa is unable, In the exarcisé of his/her senlority rights, to obtaln a position producing compensation equal to or exceeding
the compensation the employee received in the posttion from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wage adjustments, Induding cost of Bving adjustments where provided for.

(6}{b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthty allowance determined by computing the total compensation recélved by the
employee, Including vacation allowances and monthly compensation guarantees, and hisher total time paid for during the last
tweltve (12) months In which the employes performed compensated sérvice more than fifty per centum of each such months, based
upon the employee's normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement a3 a result of the Project. and
by dividing separately the total compensation and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly
compensatian and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage
adjustments, induding cost of lving adjustments where provided (or. If the displaced employee's compensation In his/her current
pesition Is less In any month during histher protactive perfod than the aforesald averaga compensation {adjusted to reflect
subsequent general waga adjustméats, Including cost of living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the
difference, less compensation for any time lost on account of valuntary absences to the extent thatthe employee Is not avallable
for service equivalent to his/her average monthly ime, but the employee shall be compénsated in addition thereto st the rate of
the current pasition for any time worked in excess of the average monthty ime paid for. If a displaced employee fails to exercise
his/her senlority rights to secure another position to which the employea Is entitied under the then existing collective bargalning
agreement, and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the amployao elects to retaln,
the employeo shall thereattor be treated, for the purpasas of this paragraph, as occupying the poslition the employee elects to
decline.

{6)(c) The displacement allowance shell cease prior to the expiration of the protective period In the event of the displaced
emplayee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause In accordance with any labor agreement applicable to histher

employment.

{7)(a) Whenevar any employea is {aid off or otherwise deprived of employment as 8 result of the Project, In accordance with any
collective bargalning agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee” and
shall be paid o monthty dismisss| allowance to be determined In accordance with this parograph. Said dismissat allowance shall
first be paid each dismissed employae on the thirtieth (30th) day following the day on which the employee is *"dismissed” and shall
continue during the protective period, a5 follow:

Employee's [ength of service

ptlor b adverse effect Period of protection
1 day to 6 years equivalent perod

6 years or more 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall ba equivalent to one-twelfth (1/12th) of the total compensation recolved by the employee in

the {ast twatve (12) months of his/her employment in which the employee performed compensation service more than fiky per
cantum of each such month based on tha employee's normal work schedule to the data on which the employee was first deprived



of employment as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living adjustments where provided for. . :

(7)t) An employee shall be regarded s deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abollshed but the employee
{oses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position s abolished a5 a result of the Project
or as o result of the exercise of senlority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the employve Is
unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee's senfority rights, or through the Recipient, in accordance
with subparagraph (e). In the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or dedslon pursuant to paragreph (S) hereol, no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exercise his/her senlority rights to
secure another position In arder to qualify for 2 dismissal allowance hereunder.

(TXc) Each employee receiving a dismlssal aflowance shall keep the Reciplent informed as to his/her current address and the
current name and address of any ather person by whom the employee may be regularly employed, or [l the employea s sell-
employed.

(THd) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly essigned incumbent of the position abolished. If the position of an
emptoyee Is abolished when the employee Is absent from service, the employee will be entitlad to the dismissal sllowance when
the employee |s available for service, The employee tamporarily filling sald position st the time It was abolished will be glven a
dismissa! atlowance on the basis of that pasition, untfl the regular employee Is avallable for service, and thereafter shall revert to
the smployee’s previous status and will be glven the protactions of the agreement in sald position, if any 2ra due him/her,

(T)e) An employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee’s former employer;
notification shall be in sccordance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement if the employeeis
representad by a union. Prior to such call to retum to work by his/her employer, the employes may be required by the Reciplent to
accept reasonably comparable employment for which the employeo is physically and mentally qualified, or for which the employee
can become quatified after a reasonable training or retralning period, provided it does not requlre a change in residence or Infringe
upon the employment rghts of other employees under then-existing collective bargalning agreements.

(7))} When an employee who Is recetving o dismissal allowance again commences employment in accordance with subparagraph
{e) above, s2id allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, and the period of time during which the employee Is so
reemployed shall be deducted from the total perlod for which the employee Is entitied to receive a dismissai allowance. During the
time of such reemployment, the emptoyee shall be entitied to the protections of this arangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7)) The dismissal allowance of srry employee who I3 otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee's
combined monthly ezmings from such other employment or self-employment, 2ny benefits recetved from any unemployment
Insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount upon which the employes's dlsmissal allowance Is based. Such
employee, or his/her union representative, and the Reciplent shall agree upon a procedura by which the Recipient shall be kept
currently Informed of the eamings of such emplayee In emplayment other than with the emplayee'’s former employer, Induding
seif-employment, and the benefits recetved,

1
(7){h) The dismissa! allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period [n the event of the failure of the employee
without good cause to retum to service In accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided
under subparagreph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause In
accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employment.

(TX1) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissat sllowanca shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her for which the employee Ls physically and mentally qualified and does not require a change in the
employee's place of residence. Fallure of the dismissed employea to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee’s allowance; provided that sald dismissal aliowanca shall not be discontinued until final
determination Is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final
arbltration decision rendered In accordance with paragraph (15) of this amangement that such employoe did not comply with this
obllgation.

(8) In determining length of service of s displaced or dismissed employes for purposes of this arrangament, such employee shall be
given full service credits in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall ba
given additional service credits for each month In which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as |f the
employee were continuing to perform secvices in hisfher former position.

{9) No employee shall be entitled to elther a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7) hereof becauss of the
abolishment of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.



(L0) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be deprived, during the employee's protected period, of
any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employment, induding, without limitation, group life lnsurance,
haspitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee’s family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under any disability of retirement program, and such ather employee benefits as Rallroad Retirement, Social Security,
Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same condilions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unlt, in
active suvlt?mfmiou@edasﬂmaumybe.

{11){a) Any employee covered by this arangement who s retzined In the service of his/her employer, o7 who Is later restored to
service after belng entitled to receive a disinissal allowancs, and who Is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retaln or secure active employment with the Reciplent In accordance with this arrangement, and who Is required to move
his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effects, for the
traveling expenses for the employee and members of the employee's Immedlate family, Including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's Immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for 2
reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed five (5) working days. The exact extent of the responsibllity of the Reciplent under this
paragroph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Reciplent and the affected
employee or the employee's representatives. )

(11)(b) if any such employes Is 12id off within three (3} years after changing his/her point of employment in accordance with
paragraph (a) herecf, and elects to move hisfher place of residence back to the original point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11) and
paragraph (12)(a) hereof.

(11}c) No clalm for reimbursement shall ba pald under the provisions of this paragraph unless such clalm s presented to the
Reciplent in writing within ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided (n subparagraph {b), changes In place of residence, subsequent to the Initial chnn'gs asa
result of the Project, which are not s resuit of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of senlority rights, shall not be
considered within the purview of this paregraph.

(12){a) The following condltions shall apply to the extent they are applicable In each Instance to any employee who is retained In
the service of the emplayer (or who s later restored to service after befng entitled to recetve a dismissal allowance), who Is required
to change the paint of his/her employment 85 a result of the Project, and |s thereby required to move his/her place of residence.

If the employee Is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Redplent shall protect the employee 2gainst loss under such
contract, and In additlon, shall relleve the employee from any further obligation thereundar.

If the employee holds an unexplred leass of a dwelling occupled as the employee's home, the Raciplent shall protect the employee
from all loss and cost In securing the cancetlation of sald lease,

(12){b} No ctalm for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim s presented to the Recipient In
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence.

{12){c) Should & controversy arise in respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained In its sale, the loss under » contract for
purchase, loss and cost in securing termination of a lease, or any other question in connection with these matters, it shall be
decided through a joint conference between the employee, or his/her union, and the Reciplent. In the event they are unable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be refermed by the Reclpient or the unlon to a board of competent real estate appralsers
selected In the following manner: one (1) to be selected by the representatives of the employea, and one (1} by the Recipient, and
these two, if unabla to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third sppralser or to agree to a method by which a thind appralser shall be selected, and faling such agreement, ¢ither
party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within tan (10) days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be Uimited to determination of the Issues raised in
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and sald decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral sppraiser including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be bome
equatly by the parties to the proceedings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(12)(d) Except as otherwise provided In paragraph (11){b) hereof, changes In placa of residence, subsequent to the [nitial changes as
a result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniorty rights, shall not be



considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12Ke) "Change in residence™ means transfer to a work location which is elther (A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the
employee's former work location and farther from the employee's residence than was his/her former work location, or (B) Is more
than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee’s residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the
employee's former work location.

(13)(a} A dismissed employee entitled to protaction under this arrangement may, at the employee’s option within twenty-one (21)
days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lleu of all other benefits and protections provided In this arrangement) accept a lump sum
payment computed In accordance with section (9) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

Length of Service Sepamtioh Allowance
1 year and less than 2 years 3 months’ pay
2-"-3.6'-
gewsngsges
5 SIIIllonull
Io.lllulull
15" *over 12**

in the case of an employee with less than ono year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 the normal dally earnings
{including regularly scheduted overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) recetvad by the employee In the position last
occupled, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be pald as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided [n Section T(b) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes of this anangement, the length of service of the employae shall be determined from the date the employee last
acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for sach
month In which the employee performed any service (In any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one yaar's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be Interrupted by furlough In Instances wheére the employee
has a dght to and does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an employee acting as an officer o other
officlal representative of an employee organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the servico of a carrier.

{13){b) One month's pay shall be computed by mudtiplying by 30 the normal dally eamings (Includling regularly scheduled overtime,
but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee In the position last occupled prior to ime of the employee’s
dismissal as a result of the Project.

(24) Whenever used hereln, unless the context requlres otherwisa, the tarm "protactive period® means that period of ime during
which a displaced or dismissed employee Is to be provided protection herounder and extends from the date on which an employee
Is displaced or dismissed to the explration of six (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any
particular employee during which the employee is entitied to receive the banefits of these provisions shall not continue for a longer
period follawing the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of sarvice, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15)(a) In the event that employee(s) are represenied by 2 Unloa, any dispute, claim, or grievance srising from or relating to the
Interprotation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this amangement, not otherwise govemned by paragraph 12(c), the
Labor-Management Relations Act, s amended, the Rallway Labor Act, 23 amended, or by Impasse resolution provisions in a
collective bargalning or protective arrangement invalving the Reciplent and the Unlon, which cannot be settied by the parties
thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to eny final and binding
disputes settlement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the even! they cannot agree upon such procedure, tha dispute, claim,
or grievanca may be submitted at the written request of the Reclplent o the Unlon to final and binding arbitration, Shoutd the
parties ba unable to agree upon the satection of a neutral arbltrator within ten (10) deys, any party may request the American
Arbitration Assoclation to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then svallable to serve, five (5) arbitrators from which a neutral
arbitrator shall be selected. The partles shall, within five (5) days after the recelpt of such Ust, determina by lot the order of
elimination and thereaftar sach shall, in that order, aiternately eliminate one name until only one name remains. The remaining
person on the ist shall be the neutra) arbltrator. Unless otherwise provded, In the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
{5) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (15) days sfter selection or appointment of the neutral
arbitrator, and the declsion shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the
record closed. The decision shall be final and binding. All the conditions of the armangement shall continue to be effective during
the arbitration proceedings.



{15)({b) The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly Incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by
the Unlon(s) and Reciplent, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

(15){c) In the event that employee(s) are not represented by a Union, eny dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
Interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this armngement which cannot be settled by the Redplent and the
amployee(s) within thirty {30} days after the dispute oc controversy adses, may be refemad by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or In the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procadure,
the dispute or contraversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor for a final and binding determination,

(15)(d) In the event of any dispute as to whether or not a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be tho obligation
of the employee or the representative of the employee to identify the Project and spedify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Reclplent to prove that factors other than the Project affected the employee, The claiming
employee shall prevall if it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. (See Hodgsan's Affidavit In Chvil Action No. B25-T1).

{16) The Reciplent will be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements
56 that any employee covered by this arangament may flle 8 written claim of its viotation, through the Unlon, or directly If the
employea I3 outside the bargalning unit, with the Recipient within sixty (60) days of the date the employes s terminated or laid off
as o result of the Project, or within elghteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment Is
otherwise worsened as a result of the Project. [n the latter case, If the events giving rise to the dalm have occurmed over an
extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits shall be payable for any period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the fling of any clalm. Unless such claims are filed with the Reciplent within said time
limitations, the Reciplent shall thercafter berelleved of all liabliities 2nd obligations retated to the daim.

The Reciplent will fully honor the clalm, making appropriata payments, or will give notice to the clalmant or his/her representative
of the bagls for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons therefore. If the Reciplent fails to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargalning unit employee may Invoka mfdbwingpmcedum for further joint investigation of the clalm by:lvlng notice in
writing. Within ten (10) days from the recelpt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the disposition of the ¢lalm and shall jointty take such steps 83 may ba necessary or desirable to obtaln from dny
third party such additional factual matedals as may be retevant. In the event the Radphnt rejocts the clalm, the clalm may be-
processed to arbitration as herelnabove provided by paragraph (15).

{17) Nothing in this amengement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may
have under existing employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwise; provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided fuithier, that any benefit under this arangement shall be construed to include the
conditions, responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such bengfit. This arangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Unian or of any represented employee dertved l'mmany other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee's protective period, 8 dismissed employea shall, If the employee so requests, in writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to filt any vacant pasition within the jurisdiction and control of the Reclpient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, Inctuding those In the employment of any entity bound by this
afrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for which the employes is, or by tralning or retraining can become, qualified; not,
howaver, In contravention of collective bargaining agreements related therato. In the event such employee requests such training
or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Reciplent shall provide for such tralning or re-training at no cost to the employee, The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for n the applicable collective bargalning agreement of otherwise
estzblished in personnel polides or practices for such position, plus any disptacement allowance to which the employee may be
otherwise entitied. If such dismissed employee who has made such request falls, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee Is qualified, or for which
the employea has satisfactorily completed such tratning, the employee shall, effective st the expiration of such ten-day period,
forfeit all dghts and benefits under this arrangement.

As botween employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applcable shall prevall in
hiring such employees: '

{s) Employees In the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over employees without senlority in such craft or cdass;

(b} As between employees having senlority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senlor employees, based upon thelr service In
that crah or class, as shown on the appropriate senlority roster, shall prevail over junior employees;

(c) As between employees not having senlorty in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senlor employoes, based upan their servicain
the crafts or dasses In which they do have seniordty as shown on the oppropriate senlority rosters, shall provail over junlor

employees.



(19) The Reciplent will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance
under the Federal Translt statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C., Section 5333(b). This notice shall also
spedfy the terms and condltions tat forth hereln for the protection of employees, The Reciplent shall maintaln and keep on file all
relevant books and records In suffident detafl as to provide the basic Information necessary to the proper application,
administration, and enforcement of this amangement end to the proper determination of any clalms arising thereundar.

(20) In the event the Project s approved for assistance under the statute, the foregolng terms and conditions shall be made part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicant for federal funds and between the applicant and any
reclplent of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be
independentty binding and enforceable by and upon the perties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her representative, In
sccordance with its terms, nor shall any other employee protective sgreement merge Into this amangement, but each shall be
Independentty binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, In accordance with lts terms.

(21) This amangement shall be binding upan the successors and assigns of the parties bereto, and no provisions, terms, or
obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed [n any respect whatsosver by reason of the
arrangements made by or for the Raciplent to manage and operata the system.

Any person, anterprise, body, or agancy, whether publicly - or privatety-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
and/or operation of the Project services or the Reclplent’s transit system, or any part or portion thereot, under contractual
arrangements of any form with the Reciplent, its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arangement
and accept the responsibility with the Reciplent for full performanca of these conditions. As a condition precedent to dny such
contractual arangements, the Reciplent chall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to 50 agree.

(22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part or portion
thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, In comparable positions, within the jurlsdiction and
cantrol of the acquiring entity, including positions In the employmaent of any entity bound by this amangement pursuant to
paregraph (21). All persans employed under the provislons of this pamgraph shall be appointed to such compsarable positions
without examination, other than that required by applicable federat, state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and
shall be credited with their years of service for purposes of senlority, vacations, and pensions In accordance with the records of
thelr former employer and/or any applicable coflective bargalning agreements.

(23) The employees coverad by this armngement shall continue to recelve any applicable coverage under Soclal Security, Rallroad
Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemploymént compensation, and the lika. In no event shall thess benéfits be worsened
23 a result of the Project. .

(24) (n the event any provision of this arangement Is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforcaable under the federal, state, or
local Law, in the context of 2 particular Project, the remaining provisions of this amangement shall not ba affected and the invalid or
unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and the Interested Unlon representatives, if any, of the employees
Invotved for purpose of sdequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such negotiation shall not result In mutually satisfactory
agresment any party may Invoke the jurisdiction of the Secrutary of Labor to determine substitute falr and equitabla employee
protactive srrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be Incorporated In this arrangement ohly as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or rellef.

(25) If any employer of the employees covered by this amangement shall have rearanged or ndjusted its forces in anticipation of
the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this amangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was 30 affected.

Last Updated: 02-07-18
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement ' o d Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subreciplent Agency: Advance Transit, Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federa! Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (4s required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountabillty and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $8,643,178.00

. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION

Federal Award I[dentification Number (FAIN): 1385-2021-5

Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact jnformation for sub-awarding official;

Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Acronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.C.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No

NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information;
Subrecipient Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrecipient DUNS number: 118080233

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 5J3P7

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A :

{An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subreciplem and the Federal

Government or, if no such rate exisis, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subreciplent (in compllance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414

Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph ().



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amendment):
For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $6,193,964.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendments):
For FFY: 2021 Section:'5311 Amount: $6,193,964.00 :

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to mect all requirement imposed by the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that.the Federal award is used in accordance
with Federa! statutes,, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and

* performance reports.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and
auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the
pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: Click or tép to enter a date. 575'/2./

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Matt Osborn

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official: /zf,;ct &-QL»—\
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Graham & Veroff -

Certified Public Acoountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of
Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, Yermont

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Advance Translt, Inc. (A New Hampshire
non-profit organization), which comprise the statcments of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. :

Auditor’s Responsibllity

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrotler General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial stateroents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evalusating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for
our audit opinion.

PO Box 886, 368 River Street, Springficld, VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fax 802-885-4999
174 Court Street, Laconia, NH 03246 603-527-8721 Fax 603-527-8187
Website: www.grahamepa.com



Graham & Veroff

Certifiod Public Accountants i
Business Advisors & Managemeni Consultanls

The Solution Group

Opinlon

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Advance Transit, Inc. as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordence with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters — Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as & whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Regquirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statemeats
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August -
19, 2020, on our consideration of Advance Transit, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and

on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to

provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering

the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. :

Groham & Veroff PC.

Graham & Veroff, P.C.
Springfield, Vermont

August 19, 2020

VT Reg. #92-0000282

NH Registration #659

ME Reglstration #FMF 10001129

PO Box 886, 368 River Strect, Springfic!d, VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fax 802-885-4999
174 Court Street, Laconla, NH 03246 603-527-8721 Fax 603-527-8187

Website: www.grahamcpa.com
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Restricted municipal and contract pledges receivable

Pledges receivable

Prepaid expenses

[nventory

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Transportation equipment
Communication and radio equipment
Office and shop equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS
~ LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Acerued payroll expenses
Deferred revenue
Total current ligbilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Paycheck Protection Program note payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
Designated
Capital reserve
Operating reserve
Undesignated
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2020 2019
$ 2025172 § 1,647,666
800,753 81,519
986,691 985,390
; 25,000
110,695 137,392
205,044 201,213
4,228,355 3,078,180
263,358 263,358
47,804 47,804
4,357,300 4,357,300
11,557,174 10,592,573
93,511 124,215
701,521 739,695
17,020,668 16,124,945
6,027,752 5,085,166
10,992,916 11,039,779
$ 15221271 $ 14,117,959
$ 68,596 $ 26,731
235,519 199,544
40,814 1,607
344,929 227,882
673,300 -
1,018,229 227,882
576,369 69,335
1,500,000 1,200,000
91,320 585,858
12,035,353 12,034,884
14,203,042 13,890,077
$ 15221271 § 14,117,959

[ ==—

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Without
Donor With Donor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total
REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Federal government: section 5311, operating $ 3,149,628 § - § 3,149,628
Federal and state government: section 5339/531 1, capital - 962,370 962,370
Fedoral government: CMAQ, operating 126,924 - 126,924
Federal government: RTAP 7 3,083 - 3,083
Contract 739,868 608,540 1,348,408
Municipal 112,004 378,151 490,155
State of Vermont 110,000 - 110,000
State of New Hampshire 5 34,782 - 34,782
Other 16,759 - 16,759
Donations 148,770 44,764 193,534
Net assets relcased from restrictions 2,103,238 (2,103,238) -
Total revenue and support 6,545,056 (109,413) 6,435,643
EXPENSES
Program Services
Public and other transporation 5,407,054 - 5,407,054
Total program services 5,407,054 - 5,407,054
Support Services _ 9
General and Administrative 637,877 - 637,877
Fundraising 77,747 . 71,747
Total support servioces 715,624 - 715,624
Total expenses 6,122,678 - 6,122,678
Change in net assets before transfers 422,378 (109,413) 312,965
Transfers of local share to restricted (109,882) 109,882 -
Net assets, beginning of year 1,855,193 12,034,884 13,890,077
Net assets, end of year ) $ 2‘1672689 s I2!035g53 s I4é03;042

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Staterents
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Without
Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Federal government: section 531 1, operating § 2342847 § - $ 2342847
Federal and stats government: section 5339/5311, capital - 3,363,296 3,363,296
Federal government: RTAP 18,650 - 18,650
Contract 1,270,777 - 1,270,777
Municipal - 985,390 985,390
State of Vermont 110,000 - 110,000
Gain or loss on disposals 2992 .- 22,992
Other 19,349 - 19,349
Donations 168,416 95,000 263,416
Net assets released from restrictions 1,618,207 (1,618,207) -
Total revenue and support 5,571,238 2,825479 8,396,717
EXPENSES
Program Services
Public and other transporation 4,842,561 - 4,842 561
Total program services 4,842 561 - 4,842 561
Support Services _ ,
General and Administrative ; 534,372 - 534,372
Fundraising 71,197 ) 71,197
Total support services 605,569 - 605,569
Total expenses 5,448,130 - 5,448,130
Change in net essets before transfers 123,108 2,825,479 2,948,587
Transfers of local share to restricted (376,552) 376,552 -
Net assets, beginning of year 2,108,637 8,832,853 10,941,490
Net assets, end of year $ 1855193 $ 12,034,884 $§ 13,890,077

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Expenses:
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Benefits
Fuel
Repairs
RTAP Grant
Consulting
Office
[nsurance
Travel
Unifarms
Building

Parts [nventory

Depreclation

Total expenses

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Program
Services ~ Support Services
Public Total
and Other General and Support
Transportation ~ Administrative ~ Fundraising Services Total
2,349,087 § 301,923 § 50,483 § 352,406 § 2,701,493
184,555 30,691 - 30,691 215,246
733,220 88,853 - 88,853 822,073
233,911 939 - 939 234,850
246,928 789 - 789 247,717
4,041 - - = 4,041
31,241 63,619 = 63,619 94,860
105,614 71,851 27,264 99,115 204,729
288,022 14,548 - 14,548 302,570
5,060 1,935 - 1,935 6,995
20,026 - - - 20,026
139,462 - - - 139,462
7,429 - - - 7,429
1,058,458 62,729 - 62,729 1,121,187
5,407,054 § 637,877 § 77,747 § 715,624 § 6,122,678
=} [=——ess et



Expenses:
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Benefits
Fuel
Repairs
RTAP Grant
Consutlting
Office
Insurance
Travel
Uniforms
Capital Grant Planning Expense
Building
Parts Inventory
Depreciation
Total expenses -

s

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program
Services Support Services
Public Total
and Other Generel and Support
Transportation ~ Administrative ~ Fundraising Services - Total
2,064,822 $ 232,195 $ 49,550 $ 281,745 § 2,346,567
165,226 19,050 - 19,050 184,276
601,155 51,173 - 51,173 652,328
268,921 79 - 779 269,700
236,123 2,577 - 2,577 238,700
18,540 - - - 18,540
58,508 39,001 - 39,001 97,509
60,692 78,097 21,647 99,744 160,436
. 270,389 15,058 - 15,058 285,447
7,057 3,197 - 3,197 10,254
23,449 - - - 23,449
30,915 - - - 30,915
135,131 - - - 135,131
62,430 - - - 62,430
839,203 93,245 . 93,245 932,448
4,842,561 $ 534,372 § 71,197 § 605,569 § 5,448,130

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in municipal and contract pledges receivable
(Increase) decrease in pledges receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2020 2019
$ 312965 § 2,948,587
1,121,187 932,448
(2,072) (22,992)
(719,234) 292,431
(1,301) (340,179)
25,000 (25,000)
26,697 (24,079)
(3,831) 74,453
41,865 (40,401)
35,975 11,975
39,207 (1,217)
876,458 3,800,026
(1072252)  (3,712,834)
. 47,125
(1,072252)  (3,665,709)
673,300 -
673,300 -
477,506 134,317
1,647,666 1,513,349
$ 2125172 § 1,647,666
—xo

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire and is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Its mission is
to provide & comprehensive transportation network for the several towns of the Upper Connecticut River
Valley Reglon of New Hampshire and Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

. The financial statements of the Organization are prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis,
revenues and gains are recognized when eamed, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred.

The significant accounting policies followed by the Organization are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for not-for-profit organizations topic
of the Financial Accounting Stendards Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958 205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of pet assets. Descriptions of the two net asset
categories are as follows:

Without donor restrictions — Those resources not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. The Board
of Directors has discretionary controf over these resources. Designated amounts represent those net
assets that the board has set eside for a particular purpose.

With donor restrictions — Those resources subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be
satigfied by action of the Organization or by the passage of time.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in oonform:ty with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from thoss estimates.

Cash and Cash Bquivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Organization's bank deposit account balances are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured up
to $250,000, and any excess amounts are fully collateralized by the pledge of eligible collateral by the
depository bank. The Association has not experienced any losses with these accounts. Management
believes the Association is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

-9.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the Organization’s revenue and support is derived from cost reimbursement
contracts with the States of New Hampshire and Vermont. Revenue and support is recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are incurred. Payments are received, up to each of the contracts’ respective cost
limitations upon the Organization’s submittal of written requests for reimbursement of allowable
expenditures.

ntribution

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted (without donor restrictions) or restricted (with donor
restrictions) support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose
restriction is accomplished), restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
“statement of activitics as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that ere restricted by the donor
are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the

contributions are recognized.

Pledges

Unconditional promises to give, including capital campaign pledges, arc recognized as revenues in the

. period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits
received. Promises to give are recorded at net reafizable value if expected to be collected in one year and at
fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditiona! promises to give are recognized
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Management provides for probable
uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to an allowance based on
its assessment of the amounts deemed collectible, It is the Organization's policy to charge off uncollectible
recefvables when management determines that the recelvable will not be collected.

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
Advance Transit, Inc., separate accounts are maintained for each activity. They are as follows:

Public and Other Transportation — accounts for revenue and expenses involved with operating fixed
public transportation routes as well as other non-fixed routes open to the public and expenses for
administration and direct trip reimbursement subcontracted by other agencies or programs.

istance — accounts for revenue end expenses associated with training in
non-urbanized areas.
Income Taxes
Advance Transit, Inc. is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Scction
501(c)3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a
private foundation.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes (continued)

The Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the Organization’s tax positions and concluded that the
Organization had maintained its tax-exempt status, has properly reported any significant unrelated

business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements.

The Organization's Forms 990, Retwrn of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ending
June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they
were filed. ]

uipment

The Organization records purchases of equipment at cost. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
with a cost greater than §5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-
line method based on the following useful lives. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and improvements,
which do not materally extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.

Years
Land improvements 15
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Transportation equipment ‘ : 5-12
Comrounication and redio equipment 5
Office and shop equipment 5-10

The Organization's facility and certain transportation equipment are subject to liens held by the States of
New Hampshire and/or Vermont as agents for the Federal Transit Administration or other Federal agencies
to provide for the compliance with grant requirements. The States of New Hampshire and/or Vermont also
hold the title to any equipment while subject to a lien. Substantially all of the Organization’s property and
equipment, including related financing of these assets, are subject to these requirements. Therefore, the net
assets related to property and equipment acquired through grants is reported as restricted,

Deferred revenue
The Organization records deferred revenue, which represents sponsorship, local gr;mt match pledges, and

advertising income covering periods beyond June 30, 2020 and uneamed sponsorship and mumicipal
assistance received in advance of the period to which the revenue relates.

Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets
It is the policy of the Board of Directors to review its plans for future property improvements and

acquisitions, as well ‘as other operating needs, from time to time and to designate appropriate sums of
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate financing of such purposes.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable include funds due the Organization under various grant award agreements.
_Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 corsisted of the following:

2020 2019

New Hampshire Department of Transportation $ 481963 § 9,964
Vermont Agency of Transportation 263,876 . 19,108
Contracts ' 31,109 -
Federal and state excise tax 23,558 32,921
Bus sale proceeds - 18,250
Bus sponsors 247 1,276

Total accounts receivable $ 800,753 § 81,519

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

2020 2019
Contributions:
Donor restricted contributions:

Town of Hanover $ 147,150 $ 136,683
Town of Hartford 81,743 79,362
Town of Norwich : -~ 13,514 13,514
City of Lebanon 121,221 121,221
Town of Enfield 5,253 5,253
Town of Canaan 9,270 9,270
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center 118,540 115,087
Dartmouth College 490,000 505,000

Total $ 986691 $ 985390

NOTE 5 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a bank linc of credit for any amount up to $200,000 at June 30, 2020 and
2019. The line of credit is due on demand and secured by the business assets of the Organization. Draws
on the line of credit bear interest based on the Wall Street Journal Prime rate (currently indexed to 3.25%)
for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. There were no outstanding balances on this line of credit as
of June 30, 2020 and 2019. -

NOTE 6 — PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM NOTE PAYABLE

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus a “Public Health
Bmergency of Intemational Concern” and on March 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions laken
around the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include restrictions on travel, and
quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses. The
coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had and are expected to continue to have an adverse
impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries, including the geographical area in
which the Organization opecrates. At the time of the Public Health Emergency declarations there were
many unknowns about funding and future costs to the Organization.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 :

NOTE 6 - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM NOTE PAYABLE (Continued)

Therefore, on April 3, 2020, the Organization, applied for and was granted a loan (the “Loan”) from a
bank in the aggregate amount of $673,300, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP")
under Division A, Title I of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27, 2020.

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 16, 2020 issued by the Borrower, matures on
April 16, 2022 and bears interest at a rate of 1% per annum, payable monthly commencing on
November 6, 2020. The Note may be prepaid by the Borrower at any time prior to maturity with no
prepayment penalties. Funds from the Loan may only be used for payroll costs, costs used to continue
group health care benefits, rent, interest and utilities, incurred during the covered period (24-week period
commencing April 16, 2020 through October 1, 2020). The Organization intends to use the entire Loan
amount for qualifying expenses. Under the terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the Loan may be
forgiven if they are used for qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act.

NOTE 7-NET ASSETS

Board Desigpated Net Assets

In June 2016, the Board approved the establishmeat of a Board designated capital reserve fund. In
November of 2018 the Board approved a change that modified the purpose to include funds committed
for the coming fiscal year as part of the budget process and amounts that are beyond that period but
reasonably certain to be incurred.

This figure will bo adjusted as capital match requirements change. Effective with fiscal year 2020, the
capital match reserve was set at $213,612. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, $96,270 was spent
on required local grant match amounts for capital asscts acquired, leaving a remaining balance of
$103,730 at June 30, 2020. This was reset on June 30, 2020 to $576,369 to cover capital local match as
identified in the Board approved FY 2021 budget.

In January 2016 the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated operating reserve fund. The
purpose of the operating reserve fund is to set aside approximately three months of operating expenses for
the organization, which was at that time the reserve was created, identified as $1 million and for June 30,
2020 i{s now $1.5 million. The amount of the operating reserve target minimum will be re-calculated
annually and as a part of the annual budget process by the Board of Directors’ Finance Committee.

The Executive Director, after consultation with the Finance Committee, is delegated authority to use up to
$200,000 of operating reserves for policy designated needs. .

Board Designated Net Assets

The Exccutive Director, afler consultation with the Treasurer and after Board approval, is
delegated authority to use up to $200,000 of operating reserves for policy designated needs.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 7 - NET ASSETS (Continued)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of equipment and vehicles purchased with restricted
resources, thereby limiting the assets use to specified purposes throughout the useful life of the
assets, foundation grant funds received to cover the startup costs of a planned giving fund, Town
appropriations approved in 2020 but to be paid in 2021 and capital campaign pledges.

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following:

2020 2019
. Net property, plant and equipment funded with restricted resources $ 11,003,898 § 10,954,494
Capital campaign contributions 5,000 95,000
Orangefyellow line local match contribution 39,764 -
Municipal and contract pledges 986,691 985,390
Total $ 12035353 $ 12,034,884

Net assets released from restrictions are as follows:
2020 2019
Purpose restrictions accomplished: ‘

Depreciation on restricted assets $ 1,117,848 § 948,991
Expiration of time restrictions on contributions receivable 985,390 645,211
Expiration of purpose restrictions on bus disposals : - 24,005
Total net assets released from restrictions $ 2103238 § 1618207

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a salary reduction contribution plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code, covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees contribute a specified
percentage of their salary, or a fixed dollar amount, to the plan. The Organization may agree to meke

“non-elective” contributions or a matching contribution to their employees’ 403(b) plans. The
Organization currently matches 25% on the first 5% of employee deferrals. For the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019 employer contributions to the plan amounted to $19,039 and $17,229, rﬁpecnvely

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDEN CE

The Organization receives substantial grant/contract funds from the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation and Vermont Agency of Transponatmn and is dependent upon this funding to support
most of its activities and operations. This funding is renegotiated each year and is not guaranteed for
future years beyond 2020. Loss ‘of these funds could jeopardize the Organization's ability to continue its
activities and operations.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 10 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts
not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the
balance sheet date. Donor-restricted amounts that are available for use within onc year for general
purposes include the estimated payment of municipal and contract pledges receivable as of June 30, 2020
of $986,691.

June 30, June 30,
2020 2019

Financial assets consist of: '

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2125172 $ 1,647,666

Accounts, municipal and pledges receivable 1,787,444 1,091,909

Total financial assets 3,912,616 2,739,575

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year,
due to: .

Donor restrictions 44,764 95,000
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditure within one year $ 3867852 $§ 2,644,575

As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it invests cash in excess of daily requirements in
short-term investments through a sweep account arrangement with its primary bank.

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 19, 2020, which is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued and has determined that no subsequent events have
occurred that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2020
Pass-Through Program or
_ CFDA Identifying Award Awards
Federal Grantor Agency and Program Tite Number Number Amount Expended
U.S. Department of Transportation
Major Programs:

State of Vermont Agency of Transportation:
Bus and Bus Fucilitics Formula Program 20.526 FT201901-061 s 163,200 ’ $ 137,094
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 FT040021-051 12,016 11,471
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 FT201901-071 765,000 743,168

Subtota] CFDA 20.526 891,733

State of New Hampshire Depariment of

I e .
Formula Grants for Rurel Arcas 20.509 NH-18-X050/NH-20 18 2,365,566 2,365,566

009 & NH-18-0001/NH
2019-015/ NH-2020-
007/NH-18-0002
Formula Grants for Rurnl Arces 20.509 NH-18-X045 10,000 -
e t T ion;
Formula Grants for Rura) Areas 20.509 COVIDFTA-900 502,501 177,594
Formuls Grants for Rural Arcas 20.509 COVIDFTA-401 61,344 51,729
Formula Grants for Rurel Arcas 20.509 FT201803-931 17,419 17,419
Pormula Grants for Rure! Areas 20.509 FT201903-931 220,152 .159,852
Formula Grants for Rural Arcas 20.509 FT201904-451 172,500 172,500
Formula Grants for Rural Arcas 20.509 FT201903-451 57,500 57,500
Formuta Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT201903-551 20,000 20,000
Formula Grants for Rural Arcas 20.509 FT201904-551 . 110,000 110,000
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT201904-851 162,560 126,924
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT201903-701 3,000 2332
Formula Grunts for Rural Areas 20.509 FT201603-051 6,000 4356
Formula Orants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT201604-051 6,720 5,428
Subtotal CFDA 20.509 3271200

Total Major Programs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization”) is & voluntary, not-for-profit crganization incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and is engaged to provide a comprehensive
transportation network for the several towns in the Upper Connecticut River Valley Region of New
Hampshire and Vermont. The Organization was founded in January 1984 and is headquartered in Wilder,
Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule™) presents the activity of all Federal
award programs of Advance Transit, [nc. All Federal awards are received directly from Federal agencies
as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies or other entities are included in the
schedule.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared in the format as set
forth in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Thercfore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
financial statements.

The Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. It includes ell Federal awards to the
Organization which had expenditure ectivity during the year ended June 30, 2020. Several programs are
jointly funded by the State of Vermont and State of New Hampshire appropriations in addition to Federal
Awards. The Schedule reflects only that part of the grant achvity funded by Federal Awards. The
Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2019 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance.
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Graham & Veroff
Certified Public Accountants
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, Vermont

We have sudited, in accordance with auditing standards gencrally eccepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc.
(the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thercon
dated August 19, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financlal statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control™) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s intemal control.

A deficiency in infernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on & timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may oxist that have not been identified.
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/
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued)

Compliance aad Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was oot an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results. of that testing, end not to provide an apinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Grokan & Veroff. FC.

Graham & Veroff, P.C.
Springfield, Vermont

August 19, 2020 .

VT Registration #92-0000282
NH Registration #659

ME Registration #FMF 10001129
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Independent Aunditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, Vermont

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Advance Transit, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended Jupe 30, 2020. The Organization's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Advance Transit, Inc.’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cast
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization's compliance. g

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Advance Transit, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on cach of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance (Continued)

Report on Interna! Control over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control aver compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for cach major federal program and to test and report on ‘internat control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
foderal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficlency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and thercfore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Graken & Veroff FC

Graham & Veroff, P.C.
Springficld, Vermont

August 19, 2020

VT Registration #92-0000282
NH Registration #659

ME Registration #FMF 10001129
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section [ — Summary of Auditors’ Report

Flnanclal Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Ungqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e  Material Weakness(es) identifiod? No
*  Significant deficiency(jes) identified that arc
not considered to be material weaknesses. No
Non-compliance material to the financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards ‘
Intemal control over major programs:
- M.nn:na] weakness(es) identified? No
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that arc
not considered to be material weakness{es)? No
Type of auditors® report issued on compliance for major programs: Ungualified
Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to be reported in socordance with section
200.516 of the Unjform Guidance? No
Identification of Major Prograns
Name of program or cluster ' CFDA number
U.S. Department of Transportation — Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526
U.S. Department of Transportation — Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509
Doller threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Yes

Auditee qualified as a low risk auditeo under Section 200.520 of the Unijform Guidance:
Section 1I - Financial Shtun;nt Findings

No current year findings.

Scetion I1I — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No current or prior year findings
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Advance Transit Officers and Directors

July 1, 2020

President Vice President Treasurer
Matt Osborn Suzanne Prentiss Robert Starkey
(Term ends 6/22) (Term ends 6/22) (Term ends 6/21)

City Councilor, Ward 1
Member At-Large Lebanon Member Member At Large
Secretary
Jim Tonkovich Mark Beliveau Bethany Fleishman
(Term ends 6/21) (Term ends 6/21) {Term ends 6/22)
) Transportation Program Manager
Hartford Member Hanover Member Hartford Member
David Stewart Demo Sofronas Patrick O’'Nelll
(Term end 6/23) (Term ends 6/22) (Term ends 6/23)
Member At-Large Norwich Member Member At-Large
James L. Taylor Robert Houseman Nathan Miller
{Term ends 6/23) {Term ends 6/23) _| {Term ends 6/21)
Enfield Member Hanover Member Member At-Large
Rebecca Owens (Term ends 6/21) Kathie Nolet (Term ends 6/23)
Assoclate Planner
Planning and Development Dept.

Lebanon Member

Member At-Large

07/11/19




